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Please note that the Department’s responses are not final, official or binding. Violation of section 287.057(23) of the Florida Statutes, by a respondent to a solicitation, or 
persons acting on their behalf, may be grounds for rejecting a response. The Department’s responses to timely submitted questions are provided below: 

Question 

Number 

Page Number, 

Section 
Question Answers 

1  Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this?  

 (like,from India or Canada) 

DEO does not have any preference for respondents 

from a specific geographical area. 

2  Whether we need to come over there for meetings? DEO does not foresee the need for in person project review 

meetings, but we do foresee weekly conference calls with 

the project team. 

3  Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? 
(like, from India or Canada) 

DEO does not have any preferences for location of work 

from where vendor provides services (onsite, near shore or 

offshore), but expects a vendor to respond in a timely 

manner to all requests related to services provided. 

4  Can we submit the proposals via email? No. DEO expects that all proposal responses be submitted as 

outlined in Section B.34, Submittal Requirements. 

5  Are there any publicly available documents that may provide 
additional details on this project such as feasibility studies, schedule 
IV-B or Legislative Budget requests?   

No.  There are no documents available with additional 

details on this project. 

6 Page # 5 
Section B.10 

The RFP states that proposals must be submitted only in printed copy 
in sealed envelopes and explicitly states that that electronic 
submissions of proposals will be rejected. Paper copies of proposals 
are expensive to prepare because they require printing, collating and 
shipping which contradicts the RFP’s stated goal that proposals such 
be “prepared simply and economically.” In addition, paper proposals 
can not easily be compared side by side in an evaluation matrix or be 
searched for key words to ensure compliance with mandatory 
requirements.  Lastly the inability of a printed paper to support the 
level of transparency available in an electronic document makes paper 
a less than ideal medium for a public procurement process that aspires 
to be open and transparent via FOI. Can the RFP be amended to 
require electronic submissions of proposals. 

DEO expects that all responses be submitted as outlined in 

Section B.34, Submittal Requirements. 

7 Page #6 
Section B.13 

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR EVALUATIONS makes no reference 
to a bidder experience in successfully implementing a 
CSBG/WAP/LIHEAP system for other state offices. Failing to establish a 
mandatory requirement for a minimum number of live customers on 

DEO anticipates that responses to Section B.36.1 should 

provide the information necessary for an evaluation.  Past 

performance information or contract references should be 

included in all responses to this section. 
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the bidder proposed system opens up the procurement to any custom 
development organization who can write a proposal but who has no 
previous experience implementing a large and complex low income 
program management system. Since experience does matter can the 
mandatory requirements be expanded to required bidders to have at 
least two systems in production in another state. 

8 Page #11 
Section B.29 

The RFP states, “DEO supports diversity in its procurement program 
and requests that all subcontracting opportunities afforded by this 
Contract embrace diversity enthusiastically.” Can the State of Florida’s 
commitment to MBE inclusion by requiring the designation of 
evaluation points for bidders who include MBE’s in their proposals? 
This would require a reorganization of the evaluation points. 

DEO does not expect to reorganize its evaluation criteria at 

this time. 

9 Page #16 
Section B36.1 

Tab 9 – Attachments. Can the required attachments be provided 
separately in the precise layout and format required by the RFP. 
Converting the RFP from PDF to MS Word results in a loss of 
formatting putting the burden on bidders to create exact replications 
of the forms. 

DEO expects that all responses be submitted as outlined in 

Section B.34, Submittal Requirements. 

10 Page #17 
Section B.36.2 

The RFP states,” The rates provided shall include the cost of all things 
necessary to accomplish the services outlined in Section C.” However 
Attachment B does not provide for a software license or annual 
subscription service fee, or help desk (standard or premium), etc. Are 
bidders able to modify Attachment B to reflect their traditional 
Commercial off the Shelf pricing arrangements. The current 
Attachment B is geared towards a custom development process which 
is labor intensive. Many of the categories in the current attachment B 
such as the Disaster Recovery Plan or Application Functionality Test 
Plan are embedded in our standard DevOps infrastructure and not 
something we charge separately for since it exists and are part of our 
support for IT Best Practices. 

Yes.  Respondents are encouraged to modify “Attachment 

B” as necessary to reflect their Commercial off the Shelf 

pricing arrangements. 

11 Page #19 
Section B.40.3 

Evaluation Scoring. Can the current Evaluation Scoring system be 
modified to offer points for companies who have experience providing 
similar solutions to other state offices and who include MBE’s in their 
proposals? 

See Response to Item #7 and #8. 

12 Page #25 
Section C.2 

Can DEO provide a description of the system architecture, database 
platform, programming language and API interfaces for the existing 

A description of the in-house reporting system is 

unavailable.  Proposed solution should have ability to 
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system? Is there a user or system administration guide that describes 
tge functionality of the LIHEAP, WAP and CSBG solution in use at DEO? 
Can the user guide or system admin guides be shared with bidders? 

transfer current and applicable data from existing systems 

applications currently being used by Subrecipient entities. 

13 Page #25 
Section C.3 

• Can DEO provide bidders with a copy of the current DOE plan for 
Weatherization?  

• Can DEO provide any copies of recommendations that might have 
resulted from a review of the current LIHEAP system by HHS or 
Apprise?  

• How many WAP, LIHEAP and CSBG applicants are processed 
annually?  

• How many utilities or fuel delivery vendors provide services to 
LIHEAP recipients?  

• How are payments paid to utilities or fuel delivery vendors? 
Checks printed by the CCA, EFT or the State’s central accounting 
system.  

• How many subgrantees are there for each program (WAP/LIHEAP 
and CSBG?) 

• Yes.  See attached Weatherization State Plan. 

 

• There are no recommendations from HhS or APPRISE 

available at this time. 
 

• A precise application transaction volume id unknown at 

this time. 

• There are approximately 19 utility vendors. 

 

• Utility vendors are paid through a variety of methods as 

agreed upon in each Subrecipient vendor agreements.  

 

• See Response to Item #20. 

14 Page #26 
Section C.4 

CLWS_2002. Is there a Master Address Repository (MARS) that is 
referenced for geographic data? Is there an API for the MARS system? 
Is there a unique Parcel ID for each physical address in the state? 

No, However, DEO is open to all viable recommendations.   

15 Page #26 
Section C.4 

CLWS_2009: can they clarify how partial records come into being and 
under what conditions the are allowed/must be merged 

Required to avoid duplicate records of individuals/families. 

(i.e. if a family signs up for nutrition services, then a year 

later comes back for rental assistance). 

16 Page #26 
Section C.4 

CLWS_2013: what is the purpose behind this requirement? why are 
newly developed properties entered into the system prior to their 
occupants applying for services? 

Provide options for location data recognition that includes 

street address, zip codes, geographic coordinates, etc.  

17 Page #33 
Section C.5 

Data Migration Plan. Bidders need information about the existing 
system in order to create or price a data migration plan. Does 
WAP/LIHEAP and CSBG database implement 100% referential 
integrity, data validation, and use of appropriate data types (e.g. dates 
always stored in date columns)? 
What database technology is used by the current WAP/LIHEAP/CSBG 
database? Does a test/sanitized copy of the WAP/LIHEAP/CSBG 
database exist (i.e. one without real PII, but with generated test data)? 
For the data conversion, does DEO envision a process in which DEO IT 

Currently, client related data is collected on Excel 

Spreadsheets to support reporting to Federal Funders.  No 

database is being used. 
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staff deliver data extracts to the vendor for import to vendor system, a 
professional services approach where the vendor is primarily 
responsible for extracting data from the DEO system or something in 
between? 

18 Page #39 
Section C.7 

The Staffing Levels proposed on the RFP appear to be based on a 
custom software development project as opposed to the deployment 
of a COTS solution that meets or exceeds all the stated requirements. 
The software development staffing is completely unnecessary for a 
mature COTS solution that is maintained by the bidder under a 
Continuous Integration environment. Can the staffing levels be 
adjusted to remove unnecessary staffing that only services to increase 
the overall project cost? Bidders should not be penalized for having 
mature and highly automated development, test and deployment 
DevOps in place 

Yes.  Staffing levels can be adjusted by respondent to 

remove unnecessary staffing that only serve to increase the 

overall project costs? 

19 Page #46 
Section C.23 

The RFP requires the bidder to maintain a Performance Bond and that 
the State will not be responsible for the payment of premiums or 
assessments. In the case where the bidder has been providing the 
required solution for over 12 years, has more that a dozen other states 
who use their low income program management solution in 
production and has a COTS solution that meets or exceeds the stated 
system requirements is a performance bond really necessary? It only 
services to increase the overall cost of the project in this case. 

DEO expects that all responses be submitted as outlined in 

Section C.23 Performance Bond. 

20  List and Number State Sub-Contractors to access system?  
    - Each organization requires individual credentials  
 

DEO has 39 subrecipient entities that will be required to 

access the system. 

Yes.  Each Subrecipient entity will require individual 

credentials. 

a. Approximately 19 subrecipient entities will access and 

require training on WAP module. 

b. Approximately 27 subrecipient entities will access and 

require training on CSBG module. 

c. Approximately 30 subrecipient entities will access and 

require training on LIHEAP module. 

d. The number of subrecipient entities that operate 

programs other than those listed in Bid is unknown at 

this time. 
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    a. How many will access and require training on WAP - 
Weatherization module? 
    b. How many will access and require training on CSBG module ? 
    c. How many will access and require training on LIHEAP module ? 
    d. How many operate programs other than those listed in Bid if this 
is available  ? 

 

 

 

 

21  Will Sub-Contractors have Sub-Contractor organizations (Sub-Sub) that 
will be accessing system?   
    a. If so which organizations and how many sub-sub contractors? 

A precise number of Sub-Subs that will access the system is 

unknown at this time. 

22  User capacity - How many users of sub-contractors will be accessing 
the system under this bid?  
    > User maximums or ranges. 

     - This will be used to understand system capacities that must be 
determined and established. 

Approximately 150-300 subrecipient entity users including 

utility vendor users will access the system. 

23  Will you require a minimum number of Live or Online trainings for sub-
contractor organizations? 

DEO anticipates that respondent will conduct a training 

needs analysis and recommend a best-fit training and user 

support solution that will meet implementation goals. 

24 Pg 8 B.18 How many subgrantees or agencies do you anticipate entering client 
information into the system? See Response to item #20. 

25  Do you anticipate Community Action Agencies (CAAs) in FL entering 
their client specific data – i.e. Jane Doe, Born 4/25/1970 and the 

DEO anticipate Subrecipient CAA’s entering the client 

specific data. 
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specific services she received—into the system?  Or are you 
anticipating that the CAAs provide you with ‘aggregated’ information 
as required by the CSBG annual report? 

26  • Do you anticipate ALL CAAs in the state using the system to do 
actual case management with their clients? 

 

• Are CAAs being required to use this system? 

• Yes. DEO anticipates all CAA’s will use the system to do 

actual case management. 

 

• Yes.  DEO will require all CAA’s to use this system. 

27  Are there non-CSBG entities that complete LIHEAP applications in the 
state?   Yes.  There are LIHEAP entities that do not have CSBG. 

28 Pg 44, C15 Who will manage the roll out of use of the system at local agencies?   DEO expects that the assigned project management team in 

consultation with the vendor management team, will 

manage the roll-out of the use of the system at the local 

agencies. 

29 Pg 28, C5 
CSWS 5001 

To what extent have agencies, and partner agencies agreed on how to 
obtain client consent for sharing of client data?  Is it a requirement to  
allow or stop sharing based on client consent?   

DEO requires Subrecipient entities to obtain client signed 

consent to share client data per each service transaction. 

30 Pg. 15, Tab 4; You note wanting to understand’s “DEO’s rights to the data,” are we to 
assume that DEO’s right to any data entered by subgrantees or 
agencies is covered under separate grant agreements?   

Yes.  DEO’s rights to the data is covered under the subgrant 

agreements. 

31 Pg. 38, C6 #17 and #20 both  suggests requirements gathering and potentially 
development.   
Do you anticipate customization development or some custom 
development of an off the self software?  Are one of these approaches 
preferable to DEO? 

The proposed solution must meet federal requirements, and 

DEO is open to all recommendations.   

32 Pg. 38, C6 You note: “Development of Business Process Reengineering (BPR) 
Plan.”  
 
Changes in Business Processes often result in the need for new 
operating handbooks or procedures that move beyond the use of the 
software itself.  Is the intention here, to provide information about 
how to use the software?   

Yes.  DEO anticipates the respondent will provide user 

manuals for the software. 

33 Pg. 29, C5 
CLWS 7005 

• Capability to use active directory authentication/passwords and 
access levels to restrict staff access to certain client/outcome data.  

 

• Is it a requirement that we use active directory to manage login?  

Yes.  DEO anticipates the solution will use active directory 

authentication/passwords and access levels to restrict staff 

access to certain client/outcome data.  Additionally, DEO is 

currently implementing an IAM solution which will meet this 
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Or is it sufficient to have a login process and management that 
allows agencies’ to determine what kind of data specific staff are 
able to access?   

 

• Is single sign on management a requirement?   

need. 

34 Pg. 29, C5 
CLWS 7007 

• Is the administrator assumed to be local to the agency or DEO 
staff?   

 

• What constitutes ‘previously entered’…i.e. as soon as a record is 
saved or some data driven event such as the close of the program 
year?  

• DEO staff. 

 

 

• Data driven event. 

35 Section C.21.  

Pg 45 

B. 32 Pg 12 

The proposed system offered is web hosted ‘Software As Service (SAAS 

Model)’. The vendor owns the copyright, patent and license for this 

creation.  Does the section C21 where you mention that DEO will 

exclusively own such works, exclude such SAAS offerings? 

No, the state would not own the SaaS model, it would only own 
any code or modifications developed at state expense.  
 

 

36 Attachment B 

– Cost 

Proposal Pag 

50 

Our cost structure does not fit this breakdown. Can we use our own 

cost proposal form? 
See response to item #10. 

37 Attachment B 

– Cost 

Proposal Page 

50 

Line 0014 

• Training – Please indicate if this is ‘Training the trainers’ or training 

the frontline staff’.  

 

• Please give anticipated # of users to be trained. Would training be 

at a single location or multiple locations?  

See response to item #23. 

38 Attachment B 

– Cost 

Proposal Page 

50 

 

Please indicate the # of distinct agencies that would be using the 

proposed system. Also is it possible to get a number of users by each 

agency that would be using the system? See response to item #20 and #22. 

39 Attachment B 

– Cost 

Proposal Page 

50 

Data Migration – Do the current existing system have capability of 

exporting the client household data and client family member 

information into CSV files or Excel files?  

The data is currently collected and stored in Excel files. 
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Line 0004 

40 C5 Page 30 - 

Deliverables 

The proposed system is a SAAS offering and has been in existence for 

several years and is currently being implemented at several places.  

This makes many of the deliverables in section C5 not relevant to our 

offering which follows a different implementation strategy. Would 

DEO be willing to consider a different strategy for a successful 

implementation? 

Yes.  DEO is open to consideration of an implementation 

strategy that is appropriate for the proposed solution. 

41  Is there a budget amount for this project? 
 

The budget for this project is still under development.  We 

anticipate a budget within the range of 150k-300K, 

contingent upon approval by Federal Funders. 

42 Page 26, 
Section C.4,  
CLWS_2011 
CLWS_2001 & 
CLWS_2008 
 
Page 15, 
Section B.36.1, 
under  
 Tab 4 

• Is there a description or example of the sources and  estimated 
quantity of customer data to be imported? 

 

• If so can you provide? 
 
   

An estimated quantity of customer data is unavailable.  

Proposed solution should have ability to transfer current 

and applicable data from existing systems applications 

currently being used by Subrecipient entities. 

43 Page 34, 
Section C.5, 
Data  
 Migration 
 
Page 25, 
Section C.3,  
 Page 14, 
Section B.36.1 
Tab 4 

 Are the guidelines and thresholds of eligibility for the other 
services/programs within the DEO network? 

Yes.   Proposed solution should have ability to transfer 

current and applicable data from existing systems 

applications currently being used by Subrecipient entities. 

44  Is there an estimate for how many DEO staff will need access to 
the proposed system? Approximately 25-50 DEO staff. 
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45  Is the DEO open to a SaaS solution? 
Yes.  DEO is open to all recommendations. 

46  Does the DEO have an expected go-live date? DEO anticipates a go-live date withing 200 business days of 

contract execution. 

47  Is there a budget that can be shared? 
See response to item #41. 

48 Pg. 25, C.3 Is DEO willing to consider a Cloud-based system for Client Case 
Management, Data tracking and reporting?  Yes.  DEO is open to all recommendations. 

49 Pg 30, C.4, 
CLWS_7006 

Will DEO require integration with existing systems? If so, what are 
those systems? 

Yes.  DEO anticipates that respondent solution will have the 

capability to integrate with existing enterprise system. 

50 Pg. 29, C.4, 
CLWS_6003 

Does DEO need the capability to generate branded reports with pre-
set configuration? Yes.  DEO is open to all recommendations. 

51 Pg 26, C.4, 
CLWS_2000 

Will the system require external users (non-DEO employees) to access, 
enter/edit, information in the system? See response to item #20. 

52 Pg. 26, C.4, 
CLWS_2011 

Will DEO require loading of legacy data from existing systems? If so, 
how many databases are involved, and in what formats do these 
databases exist? 

Proposed solution should have ability to transfer current 

and applicable data from existing systems applications 

currently being used by Subrecipient entities. 

53 P25 – C.2 Has DEO decided to procure a COTS solution? If not, is the evaluation, 
selection and procurement of an applicable COTS is part of the RFP? Is 
third party licensing and maintenance cost part of the budget for this 
RFP? 

DEO is open to all recommendations. 

54 P25 – C.3 Are there existing API available in the LIHEAP, CSBG and WAP systems 
that would allow the Data Tracking and Case Management solution to 
extract information from these systems for data aggregation for 
subsequent analytics, reporting and dash boarding? 

No.  There is not an API available. 

55 CLWS_1001 Are current alerts and notifications done through emails? No. 

56 CLWS_1002 How are KSA collected? Is it done through API, manually entered or 
through data feeding? 

Manual data entry. 

57 CLWS_2001 Does DEO currently subscribe to any address verification services? No.  DEO does not currently subscribe to any address 

verification services. 

58 CLWS_2005 Are there any other information besides SSN that DEO considers as 
Personally Identifiable Information (PIII) or Sensitive but Unclassified No.  Only SSN (last four digits). 
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(SBU)? 

59 CLWS_2012 • Does DEO support both Oracle and MS SQL Server as the back-end 
data base?  

Does DEO have a Data Retention Policy that would determine the 
length of time a record will be housed in the repository? 

• No.  DEO does not support Oracle.   

 

Yes, we have a Data Retention Policy.  DEO’s data retention 

policy is for 3 years or greater based on sensitivity of data. 

60 CLWS_2013 • Is DEO using LDAP for supporting RBAC (authorization) as well as 
authentication?  

• If so, does the LDAP currently have the appropriate set of groups 
for supporting the desired segregation of security privileges? 

• Yes.  DEO uses LDAP for supporting RBAC. 

 

No, the groups are not set. 

61 CLWS_5003 Can DEO share sample set of reports and dashboards, it would like to 
be supported by the new solution? DEO is open to all recommendations. 

62 CLWS_5004 • What methodology does DEO want us to use? i.e Agile, Waterfall 
or Prototype 

• DEO is open to all recommendations. 

63 Page #33 
Section C.5 

• Are LIHEP, WAP, CSBG, etc. currently all managed by the same 
legacy system with the same database? 

• If not, are their shared unique idenfiers to match persons, 
households, vendors, etc. between databases? 

•  If not, can FL DEO provide an 

• Yes. 

64 Page #24 
Section C.2 

How many approved subgrantees (CAA’s) are currently participating in 
the WAP, LIHEAP or CSG Program See response to item #20. 

65 Page #24 
Section C.2 

• What is the current annual funding commitment for WAP, LIHEAP 
and CSBG by Program?  

• Can a list of funding sources by program be provided? 
How many applications are processed annually by each program? 

• WAP $1.8 million – U.S. Department of Energy 

• WAP/LIHEAP $12 million -  U.S. Department of Health & 

Human Services 

• CSBG - $20 million – U.S. Department of Health & 

Human Services 

• LIHEAP - $60 million – U.S. Department of Health & 

Human Services 

A precise application transaction volume id unknown at this 

time. 

66 Page #26 
Section C.4 

CLWS-2015. Capability of Accepting Electronic Signature. Can a third 
party electronic signing solution like Adobe Document Sign be used to 
satisfy this requirement? 

Yes.   DEO is open to all recommendations. 
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67 Page #26 
Section C.4 

CLWS_2016. What type of functionality is DEO seeking with this stated 
requirement 

DEO anticipates that respondents will highlight any 

additional intake related features that is available in their 

solution. 

 

68 Page #26 
Section C.4 

• CLWS_4003. What type of calendar integration (Google, Outlook, 
etc is DEO seeking with this requirement 

• Calendar integration with Outlook or SharePoint. 
































































